MINUTES OF THE TRAINING/WORKSHOP
PIGEON FORGE REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION
FRIDAY, MAY 9, 2025, 9:00 AM
CITY HALL, PIGEON FORGE, TENNESSEE

MEMBERS PRESENT MEMBERS ABSENT
Tony Kyker —Chairman Mark Rutledge
Jeff Dodgen

Russell Carr

Jessica Nichols

Tony Watts

OTHERS PRESENT
Pablo Chavez
Eric Horner

David Taylor — City Planner

Loreto Ferrada — Assistant City Planner
Nathan Rowell — City Attorney

Brad Lowe — Code Enforcement

PLANNING COMMISSION

1. Call to order.

Staff Planner David Taylor Thanked the commissioners for being able to
attend this workshop and advised them that his will count toward their
required continuing education credit.



2. Review of Annexation Request, Little Valley Road (Tax Map 093
Parcel 27.00).

Staff Planning Director David Taylor gave background on the
property. It is roughly 60 acre and fronts Little Valley Road. It is half
mile outside of the city proper. Adjoins Fox Lane and Little Valley.
There is public water to the campground and sewer runs across river,
which is across the street, as well as the campground. There has been
a preliminary plan approved for 36 sites with 15% grade met by all
roads.

Jeremy Pruitt, the engineer on the project was present and spoke. He
advised that water has been approved to come across Fox Lane. And
Fox lane has been approved for 3 units. The owners of the project
have asked Jeremy to come before the commission to alter the plans
to now include a mix of overnight and permanent residential
structures. The original plan only included 36 units for short term
rental. Now they are requesting 100 total, 60 of which would be STR
to 40 permanent residential properties. The owners are requesting the
property be annexed into the city as R-2, in order to accommodate
the STR portion of the property. They are aware that when properties
are annexed into the city, they come in as R-1 but would request the
exception to have this be annexed as R-2. Max density for the
property would be more than the original 36 units, due to the
development being comprised of 30 duplexes for the permanent
residential. Jeremy advised that the owners are open to leaving a
portion of the property a R-1, the piece of the property that is closer
to the back of Little Valley. The rest would then become R-2.
Entrances to the development would then be across the street from
the campground, on Little Valley, with one in that area and one
further down Little Valley.

Staff Planner Taylor advised that the back portion of the property,
where R-1 would be, is very steep and would require modelling by
SSR. He advised that Planning has grave concerns. Primarily with
extending the sewer across the river, and the number of pump
stations required. He also cited that the 15% grade would cause
issues with the maintenance and services to the development. He also
cited that Fox Lane would also have to be annexed into the city along
with the requested lots. He advised that the STR market in Pigeon
Forge is currently saturated and the proposed plan does not benefit
the city. Jeremy advised that the site should only require one lift
station due to being able to use gravity sewer. He advised that the



layout naturally draws everything to one central location. He advised
that the developers would be responsible for all the costs. Staff
Taylor advised that due to the 15% grade all services, from sewer to
police and fire are a challenge, as well as sanitation. He also advised
that if the annexation is approved, Planning cannot recommend the
R-2, for annexations are automatically only allowed to be R-1.
Jeremy asked at that point if the developers were agreeable to R-1,
would that be better and staff advised it would be better but
challenges would still have to be addressed. Staff also advised that
the property still had outstanding violations from logging and Jeremy
advised that those would have to be taken care of, for sure. Jeremy
was then advised that they will have to provide a specific and
detailed drawing of the proposed sewer project. Jeremy asked if they
could proceed with pursuing the project, with updated plans.
Commissioner Dodgen advised that as long as R-1 were to be part of
the plan, he felt commission as a whole would be agreeable.
Chairman Kyker asked if the R-2 designation would stress the
existing infrastructure of services and staft advised will require
modeling to know for sure but that it would. Density would have to
be less than the allowable max density for this project to work.
Commissioner Watts advised the project still requires lots of design
and review, modeling, along with annexing the rest of Fox Lane into
the city. He asked if there was water available on Fox, Jeremey said
that the county 1s running water out to that road. All of the
commissioners agreed that they would be open to reviewing the
proposed development once the annexation was approved and the
issues solved.

2. Review of De-Annexation Request, Pine Mountain Road (Tax Map
094 Parcel 124.01).

Jeremy Puckett was again the engineer for this proposed de-annexation.
He is requesting 4 acres to be de-annexed from the city in the Pine
Mountain Development. There is currently an easement to a city water
tank in part of that 4 acres and Jeremy advised can eliminate that piece
from the request. The 4 acres are all owned by a private developer and
they have controlling ownership of HOA. The portion of the
development being requested for de-annexation cannot be accessed
through Pine Mountain. He advised there are 2 building lots in the piece
however they cannot be accessed through the city property. Staff Taylor
advised that this proposal could set a precedent due to the entire area



where the piece is being taken out for de-annexation, was slated as
future development for the city. Jeremy advised that the owners of the
development are open to requesting for the entire site being d-annexed,,

instead of the 4 acres, and are also willing to convey the piece to the
water tower to city.



